



Hatch Warren Runners

Rules and Constitution

1. NAME

The club shall be known as Hatch Warren Runners.

2. CLUB COLOURS

The colours of the club shall be blue and yellow with a white trim.

3. OBJECTIVES

The objective of the club shall be to promote all activities related to running within the local community. The club was setup to be accessible and inclusive to all from beginners through to experienced runners. The membership is to be encouraging and supportive to other members and welcoming to new members.

4. ASSOCIATION OF RUNNING CLUBS

Hatch Warren Runners is a registered member of the Association of Running Clubs (membership #351). Membership of ARC provides liability insurance for the member club, its officials, run leaders and club members. Please note this is third party cover and not personal injury cover.

5. ENGLAND ATHLETICS

From 1st April 2014 Hatch Warren Runners became affiliated with England Athletics (affiliation # 7692479).

6. MEMBERS PERSONAL CARE

Members are encouraged to take personal care in warming up, stretching and warming down whenever they take part in a club run. Members are also required to wear appropriate running clothing and footwear. A member must ensure that they are medically fit and understand that they participate/enter in any club activities/events entirely at their own risk. Members agree that Hatch Warren Runners shall not be liable for any accidents, injury, loss, damage or claim or expense that may arise in consequence of their participation in club activities/events. High visibility garments must be worn on club evening runs between September and March. During September and March the club will remove non-illuminated routes from the clubs run schedule. As a club we run under the rules of the Highway Code, run on pavements whenever possible, if there is no pavement run on the right hand side of the road facing the oncoming traffic. The only exception is at sharp right hand bends where you will need to cross the road to negotiate the bend (so traffic can see you) then cross back when safe to do so. If you are running in a large group and no pavement is available the code requires you to run on the left hand side at all times.

7. MANAGEMENT

The management of the club will be in the hands of the Committee.

The Committee is empowered to deal with any matters not covered by the Rules and Constitution and to fill any committee vacancies which may arise during the year.

The Committee shall consist of a Chairperson, Secretary / Membership Secretary, Treasurer, Coaching Coordinator, Club Welfare Officer / DBS Verifier, Social Secretary, and up to 5 other committee members.

The Committee shall meet as and when necessary and all decisions will be by a majority vote.

8. FINANCES

The Treasurer will have the responsibility for controlling the income and expenditure of the club. At each Committee meeting the Treasurer shall advise the meeting of the current financial situation.

Receipts or invoices must be kept for all purchases.

The Clubs financial year shall run from 1st April to 31st March.

A set of accounts must be prepared by the Treasurer.

9. ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM)

The AGM shall be held within one month of the end of the clubs financial year. The Chairman in consultation with the Committee must give at least 28 days' notice of the AGM to all club members.

The formal business of the AGM shall be to:

- Receive the annual report.
- Receive the Treasurer's report.
- Confirm Committee members for the ensuing year. (see Appendix Committee Election Process)
- Approve membership fees for the coming year.
- Discuss items proposed by members in advance and vote upon them if necessary.
- AOB approved by the Chairman and not requiring a vote.

Motions to be discussed at the AGM must be submitted in writing to the Secretary at least 14 days before the meeting.

10. MEMBERSHIP AND SUBSCRIPTIONS

The rates of subscription shall be recommended by the Committee on an annual basis. Any person wishing to run with Hatch Warren Runners must complete a membership form and pay the appropriate subscription within a month of first running with the club. Current members will also be required annually to provide a completed membership form with their subscription. Membership forms can be downloaded from the club Facebook Group or the club website. It is the responsibility of the Treasurer to ensure that all active members have paid their subscription.

Membership renewals are due within one month of the start of the new financial year (by 30th April). Any memberships not renewed by this date will be have deemed to have resigned from membership.

Any person guilty of conduct liable to bring the name of the Club into disrepute or guilty of an offence against another club member or any act including communication considered inappropriate by the committee, will render themselves liable to either suspension or expulsion from the club.

11. DISSOLUTION

The club can only be dissolved through a resolution called for that purpose at a committee meeting.

12. THE RULES AND CONSTITUTION

A copy of the Rules and Constitution shall be available on the clubs website and Facebook group.

13. LONDON MARATHON BALLOT

All spaces that the club obtains for the London Marathon through its England Athletics Affiliation will be available for the clubs internal ballot. Members can only be entered into the ballot if they satisfy all of the following rules.

- 1. Must currently be a valid first claim club member who also held a first claim membership in the 2 previous years. (Secretary to check).
- 2. Must have entered and been rejected from the current London marathon ballot (proof required).
- 3. Must have entered 5 paid running events as a representative of HWR during the 12 month period ending 31st October of the ballot year. Representing the club in the Southern XC League can also be counted in this total. (Detail required, Virtual events do not count).
- 4. Must agree to run in club T-shirt / Vest.
- 5. Must undertake, in event of injury, to transfer their place to a reserve ballot member who also agrees to these terms.
- 6. Club ballot places are to be allocated using a tombola type draw, at an agreed event. Member doesn't necessarily need to be present, as long as their slip is handed to a committee member in good time.
- 7. Club membership renewal was paid on time by 30th April of ballot year (treasurer to check).
- 8. Did not run the London Marathon in the year of the ballot.
- 9. If you have been successful in a club London Marathon Ballot, you will be excluded from future London Club Ballots for a period of 5 years.
- 10. Subject to all the above, all club members are eligible and issue this to manage expectation.

Appendix - Committee Election Process

The management of the Club is vested in a committee consisting of a Chairperson, Secretary / Membership Secretary, Treasurer, Coaching Coordinator, Club Welfare Officer / DBS Verifier, Social Secretary, and up to 5 other committee members.

All positions are to be elected by either secret ballot or open vote at the Annual General Meeting (AGM).

All committee members will retire each year but will be eligible for re-appointment.

Any paid up first claim member is eligible to serve on the committee; however those who can demonstrate an applicable skill set, experience or aptitude, and commitment to the club are particularly welcome to apply. Such members will ordinarily be asked to join the committee and, with their consent, be co-opted on to it. At the next AGM following this, they can be formally elected by the membership. If a member is identified by the committee as having a particularly valuable skill set, experience etc., but has not applied to join the committee, they may be approached and asked if they would consider being co-opted/elected.

Candidates for the following core posts shall be elected specifically from the serving Committee at the AGM:

- Chairperson
- Secretary
- Treasurer
- Coaching Coordinator

If there is only one candidate for any particular post, voting is deemed unnecessary. The serving committee has the authority to create, and make redundant, any non-core post.

Seven members of the Committee shall form a quorum.

Each person of the committee shall have one vote, but in the event of a tie, the Chairperson shall have the deciding vote.

The Committee shall have the power to invite any person to discuss items of interest.

The Committee may form Sub-Committees (e.g. Race Sub Committee, Social Function Sub Committee etc.) and co-opt members onto these sub-committees.

The Club will appoint a welfare officer or officers. The welfare officer(s) will also act as 'Membership Representative(s)'

Candidates for the Committee, including co-opted members, must be both nominated and seconded by paid up members. All nomination papers must be received by the Secretary at least fourteen days before the date of the AGM. Any individual member may only nominate and second one proposal in any AGM. The list of Nominated candidates must be published on the Clubs Facebook group at least seven days before the AGM.

Only paid up first claim members may vote at the AGM

Those members unable to attend the AGM may apply in writing to the Secretary for a postal ballot, not less than seven days prior to the meeting. An electronic voting system will also be made available for those unable to attend.